

Direct-drive, High-speed, 1-needle, Lockstitch Machine with Automatic Thread Trimmer

DDL-9000B

ENGINEER'S MANUAL



PREFACE

This Engineer's Manual is written for the technical personnel who are responsible for the service and maintenance of the machine.

The Instruction Manual for these machines intended for the maintenance personnel and operators at an apparel factory contains operating instructions in detail.

It is advisable to use the Instruction Manual and Parts List for SC-920 together with this Engineer's Manual when carrying out the maintenance of these machines.

This manual gives the "Standard Adjustment" on the former section under which the most basic adjustment value is described and on the latter section the "Results of Improper Adjustment" under which stitching errors and troubles arising from mechanical failures and "How To Adjust" are described.

CONTENTS

1.	Spe	ecifications	. 1
2.	Nar	me of each component	. 2
3.	Sta	Indard adjustment	. 4
	(1)	Feed dog height and gradient	4
	(2)	Timing for the needle and the inner hook	6
	(3)	Needle and feed timing	8
	(4)	Feed locus and phase	.10
	(5)	Bobbin insertion	.12
	(-)	1) Bobbin case with idling prevention spring	12
	(6)	Adjustment of inner hook presser position	.14
	(7)	Lubrication	.16
	• •	1) Method of lubrication	16
		2) Method of lubrication to the oil tank	18
		3) Method of oil drainage from the oil tank	18
		4) Cleaning of the oil filter	.20
		5) Oil in the gear box	22
		6) Placement/displacement of the gear box cover	22
		7) Cautions for gear box cover oil during transportation	22
		8) Adjustment of hook oil quantity	24
		9) Hook oil adjustment procedures	24
		10)Essentials for hook oil adjustments	24
		11) Replacement of the hook shaft oil wick	24
	(8)	Adjustment of the amount of feeding	26
		1) Adjustment of forward feed stitch length	26
		2) Adjustment of reverse feed stitch length (manual)	26
		3) Adjustment of reverse feed stitch length (motor-power)	26
		4) Optional switch	28
		5) Adjustment of normal/reverse stitching	30
		6) Adjustment of Feed 0	30
		1. Method by removing the gear box cover (standard adjustment)	30
		7) Adjustment of the feed dial section	32
		8) Installation of the reverse feed arm and the reverse feed solenoid	34
		9) Stop position of the feed control spring rack	34
	(9)	Adjustment of the presser lifter	.36
		1) Adjustment of the presser pressure	36
		2) Adjustment of thread release changeover	36
		3) Adjustment of the micro-lifter	38
	(4.0)	4) Adjustment of the micro-lifter unit (available separately)	38
	(10)	Adjustment of needle stop position	.40
		1) Adjustment of upper stop position (Stop position after thread trimming)	40
	(44)	2) Adjustment of lower stop position	40
	(11)	1) Adjustment of the thread trimming composition	42
		 Adjustment of the thread trimming cam position Adjustment of the thread trimming link stepper earour 	42
		 2) Aujustitett of the thread trimming link stopper screw	42
		Standard unning for the thread unninning call Mothed of confirmation	44 //=
		Method of adjustment	40 75
		2. We not a ujus intent	40 AR
		1 Extreme backward position	+0 ∕/7
		2 Initial position	+/ ⊿7

	5) Correct position of the counter knife	48
	6) Adjustment of rise of the second thread tension disc	50
	1. How to check the amount of rise of the second thread tension disc	51
	2. How to adjust the amount of rise of the second thread tension disc	51
	7) Adjustment of the fixed knife blade tip	52
	8) Replacement of the moving knife	54
	9) Replacement of the knife thread guide	56
	10) Adjustment of the picker	58
	1. Method of confirmation	59
	2. Method of standard adjustments (Adjustment of clearance)	
	3. Method of standard adjustments (Adjustment of tip position)	
	11) Adjustment of the drive part stopper	60
	12)Replacement of the knife unit	62
	13) Installed length of the thread trimmer connector bar (asm.)	62
(10	14) Protrusion of the thread trimming shaft and stopper position	64
(12	Adjustment of the wiper (DDL-9000B- 🗆 🗆 -WB)	66
(13	Adjustment of the thrust values for the upper shaft and the upper/lower feed shafts	68
(14	Adjustment of external parts	70
	1) Adjustment of the pulley cover	70
	2) Clearance of the hand wheel	70
	3) Adjustment of the bobbin winder unit	
	1. Replacement of the bobbin friction wheel	
	2. Adjustment of the bobbin winder driver wheel position	
л Ма	intonanco	7/
4. IVIA		
(1)	Oil quantity check	/ 4
(2)	Cleaning	/ 4
(3)	Application of appropriate grease	
	1) Needle bar lower bushing (DDL-9000B-M , B-DS Specification)	<i>1</i> 4
	2) Feed bar mechanisms	۲۷ ۲۳
(4)	3) Face plate mechanism	
(4)		0
(5)	(DDL-9000B-33, SH, MA, MS)	OL
(5)	Penlacement of the motor	02 8/
(0)	Replacement of the timing helt	8/
(')	Replacement of the timing beit	0-
	rews for attachment and positions of external parts	06
5. Sc	rews for attachment and positions of external parts infinition	00
5. Sc	hook	ot
5. Sc 6. Dry	/ hook	87
5. Sc 6. Dry (1)	/ hook Cautions when a dry hook is used	87
5. Sc 6. Dry (1) (2)	/ hook Cautions when a dry hook is used Replacement of the dry hook	87 87 87
5. Sc 6. Dry (1) (2) 7. He	y hook Cautions when a dry hook is used Replacement of the dry hook ad section and control circuit connection diagram	87 87 87 87
 5. Sc 6. Dry (1) (2) 7. He 8. Air 	y hook Cautions when a dry hook is used Replacement of the dry hook ad section and control circuit connection diagram blow type hook cooling unit (available separately)	87 87 87 87 87 88
 5. Sc 6. Dry (1) (2) 7. He 8. Air 9. Treesing the second se	y hook Cautions when a dry hook is used Replacement of the dry hook ad section and control circuit connection diagram blow type hook cooling unit (available separately)	87 87 87 87 87 87 87 88
 5. Sc 6. Dry (1) (2) 7. He 8. Air 9. Tro (1) 	y hook Cautions when a dry hook is used Replacement of the dry hook ad section and control circuit connection diagram blow type hook cooling unit (available separately) bubles and corrective measures	80 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
 5. Sc 6. Dry (1) (2) 7. He 8. Air 9. Tro (1) (1) 	A hook Cautions when a dry hook is used Replacement of the dry hook ad section and control circuit connection diagram blow type hook cooling unit (available separately) bubles and corrective measures Mechanical parts	80 87 90 90 90

1. Specifications

	Model		DDL-9000B-SS	DDL-9000B-SH	DDL-9000B-MA	DDL-9000B-MS	DDL-9000B-DS
No.	ltem		Minute-quantity lubrication	Minute-quantity lubrication	Semi-dry *4	Semi-dry	Dry
	liem		For standard materials	For heavy-weight materials	For light-weight materials	For standard materials	For standard materials
1	Max. sewing s	speed	5000sti/min * 1	4500sti/min * 1	5000sti/m	nin *1, *4	4000sti/min
2	Max. stitch ler	ngth	Difference of stit	ch length 5 mm	Difference of stitch length 4 mm		ch length 5 mm
3	Needle bar st	roke	30.7mm	35mm	29mm	30.7mm	30.7mm
4	Take-up lever str	oke (standard value)	110mm	108mm	110mm	110mm	110mm
5	Thread trimmi	ng method			Horizontal type		
6	Lower bobbin	winder unit	Built-in, to	p surface of machin	e head (with bobbin	thread holding plate)
7	Wiper (only for	WB specification)		Ele	ctromagnetic side w	iper	
8	Automatic reve	rse feeding unit		Built	t-in electromagnetic	type	
		Plate (needle bar)	Oil wick l	ubrication		Grease lubrication	
9	Lubrication system	Hook		Plunger pu	mp type		No lubrication
	oyotom -	Gearbox			Sealed type		
	<u>.</u>	Plate (needle bar)	With oil tank (ca	pacity: 200 ml)	I) No lubrication		
10	Oil supply	Hook		With oil tank (capacity: 200 ml) No lubri			
			JUKI New Defrix Oil No. 1 or Exclusive grease				
		Plate (needle bar)	JUKI Machine Oil 7 JUKI Grease A (product No.: 40006323) 20g contain				23) 20g contained
	Oil to be used		(equivalent to ISO VG7) *2				
11	(grease)	Hook	JUKI New Defrix Oil No. 1 or JUKI Machine Oil 7			No lubrication	
				(equivalent to	o ISO VG7) *2		No lubrication
		Gearbox		JUKI New Defrix	Oil No.2 (equivalent	t to ISO VG32) *3	
12	Lifting amount	of presser	Presser lif	ter lever: 5.5 mm/By	/ knee: 15 mm/AK: 8	8.5 mm	
	Needle *5		DB x 1 (#11)	DB x 1 (#21)	DB x 1 (SF#9)	DB x 1 (#11)	DB x 1 (#11)
			#9 to 18	#20 to 23	#8 to 11	#9 to 18	#9 to 18
10			DP x 5 (#75)	DP x 5 (#130)	DP x 5 (#65)	DP x 5 (#75)	DP x 5 (#75)
13			#65 to 110	#125 to 160	#60 to 75	#65 to 110	#65 to 110
			134 (Nm75)	134 (Nm130)	134 (Nm65)	134 (Nm75)	134 (Nm75)
			Nm65 to 110	Nm125 to 160	Nm60 to 75	Nm65 to 110	Nm65 to 110
		Sewing space width			303mm		
14	Dimensions	Sewing space height			139mm		
	Bed size		178mmX517mm				
15	15 Machine head weight		Aachine head weight 38kg, 40kg (with AK)				
16	16 Power consumption		mption SC-920 : 320VA				
17	Working temper	rature and humidity	Temperature: 5 °C to 35°C, humidity: 35% to 85% (No dew condensation permissible)				n permissible)
18	18 Supply voltage and frequency		ly voltage and frequency Rated voltage ±10%, 50/60Hz				

*1: The machine shall be used at maximum of 4,000 rpm for the stitch of 4 mm.

*2: JUKI New Defrix Oil No. 1 or JUKI Machine Oil 7 (equivalent to ISO VG7)

*3: JUKI New Defrix Oil No.2 (equivalent to ISO VG32)

*4: When a version of the DDL-9000B-MA specification is used over a speed of 4,000sti/min, the presser pressure adjusting spring should be replaced for the standard type.

*5: The needle can change according to the destination.

2. Name of each component



- 1 Power switch
- Operation panel (CP-18, 180 or IP-110)
- Pulley cover
- 4 Thread stand
- Control box (SC-920)
- 6 Operation pedal
- One-touch type reverse feed button
- 8 Wiper
- Bobbin winder unit
- Stitch dial

- Knee lifter
- Ø Oil filler port (except for DDL-9000B-DS)
- B Feed lever
- Minute adjustable presser lifting screw
- Hand wheel
- Take-up lever cover
- Finger guard
- Under cover
- 1st thread tension
- 2nd thread tension

 Power switch This switch turns on and off the power to the head unit motor, electric components, and operation panel. Operation panel (CP-18, 180 or IP-110) This panel allows users to conduct the settings of automatic reverse stitching, head sewing, sewing speed, and more. 8 Pulley cover This cover protects the machine head motor. 4 Thread stand Control box (SC-920) The box contains the circuit that controls the head unit and motor, the output circuit that operates each output (the thread trimming solenoid, back solenoid, wiper solenoid, etc.), the pedal sensor that detects the pedal operation, and the power circuit that performs each function. 6 Operation pedal This pedal allows users to conduct machine speed control, thread trimming, presser lifting motion (only for AK-138), and more by depressing the front or back part of the pedal. One-touch type reverse feed button This button allows users to conduct reverse stitching. 8 Wiper The wiper moves the needle from the sewing material after thread trimming under control of the wiper signal from the control box. 9 Bobbin winder unit This unit is integrated into the head unit. Stitch dial This dial adjusts the front feeding amount. 6 Knee lifter ② Oil filler port (except for DDL-9000B-DS) This port is used for lubrication to the hook. B Feed lever This lever allows users to conduct reverse stitching. Minute adjustable presser lifting screw B Hand wheel 1 Take-up lever cover This cover prevents users from touching the take-up lever. 6 Finger guard This guard prevents users (mainly thumb and fingers) from touching the needle. Under cover 1st thread tension 2nd thread tension

3. Standard adjustment

(1) Feed dog height and gradient



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 Set the amount of feeding (feed dial graduation) at 0. Loosen the setscrew ② of the vertical feed bracket shaft ③ and the setscrew ③ of the horizontal feed bracket shaft ④. The feed dog height and gradient are changed when both shafts of the vertical feed bracket shaft ④ and the horizontal feed bracket shaft ④ are turned by means of a screwdriver. After adjustments, firmly tighten the screws that have been loosened. (Screw tightening should be done under the condition that the setscrews ④ and ④ are pushed against the vertical feed bracket shaft ④ and the horizontal feed bracket shaft ④ and the horizontal feed bracket shaft ④.) (Cautions) 1. In regard to the locus of standard feeding, the throat plate and the feed dog rise almost horizontally when the throat plate rises. The direction of the engraved marker dots for the vertical feed bracket shaft ④ and the horizontal feed bracket shaft ④, this can be a cause of unusual sound and improper linearity. 	 o If the gradient of the feed dog is adjusted for either shaft only, the feed dog height may be changed. Adjustments are needed for both shafts in all cases. o According to the shaft adjusting position, the position of feed dog motion may be shifted. In such a case, loosen the tightening screw G of the X feed arm O to adjust the position of motion. o According to the result of feed dog height or gradient adjustments, there is possibility of interference with the thread trimmer unit. o When the feed dog height is set above the standard level, the feeding power is improved. Instead, there can be problems of presser jumping at high speed and flaws in light materials. o If the feed dog height is too much, a return will be given to the front side (Section C) of the feed dog. As a result, the behavior of material feeding may be affected. If the height has to be increased for an unavoidable reason, the amount of return can be reduced by adjusting the gradient of the feed dog to raise its tip.
	0.8mm DDL-9000B-□ S, MA 1.2mm DDL-9000B-SH



(2) Timing for the needle and the inner hook

Adjustment Procedure				Results of Improper Adjustment	
 Turn the flywheel until the needle bar ② comes to its lowest position, and loosen the needle bar connecting setscrew ①. Determine the needle bar height. Adjust the engraved marker line (marker line ③ for the DB needle and marker line ④ for the DA needle) of the needle bar ② to the lower end of the needle bar lower metal ③ and tighten the needle bar connecting setscrew ①. (Be careful not to tighten the needle bar connecting setscrew ① too much.) Determine the mounting position of the hook ③. Turn the three hook setscrews in the direction of flywheel forward revolutions to raise the needle bar. In this direction, adjust the engraved marker line (marker line ③ for the DB needle and marker line ① for the DA needle) to the lower end of the needle bar lower metal ③. In this state, adjust the blade point ④ of the inner hook to the center of the needle ④ so that a clearance of 0.04 to 0.1mm (goal value) is secured between the needle ④ and the hook ⑤. Since then, firmly tighten the three hook setscrews. (Cautions) 1. Since the needle bar ② of the DDL-9000B-MS, -DS is black, the engraved marker line may be hard to see. Work should be carried out under bright circumstances by giving a light to the spot, for example. 					 o If this clearance is too small, the blade point of the hook () may be damaged. o Too much clearance may give rise to stitch skipping.
 <information about="" dry="" hook="" the=""></information> A dry hook (RP hook) is employed for the DDL-9000B-DS type. For replacement, use the part numbers specified below. The hook part numbers come in two types according to the specifications. 22890206 (without the needle guard) 22890305 (22890206 with special surface treatment) (Cautions) The dry hook (RP hook) tends to collect thread chips and material dust. This can cause malfunction or defective stitches. Periodic cleaning is required. 					
<l Th siz Wi thi ne Ab</l 	is is a hard blade point ho e #9 (#65). here a thin needle has to s type of hook is applical edle breakage. bout the needle bar	be used for be to the pre	y> edle holder app reasons of se evention of stit	ving processes, tch skipping and	
	Specifications	Part No.	Amount of	Needle shank	
	DDL-9000B-SS	22886904	1.8mm	ø1.64	
	DL-9000B-SS	22887004	1.8mm	ø2.02	
	DL-9000B-M 🗆, DS	40086602	1.8mm	ø1.64	
C	DL-9000B-M 🗆, DS	40086604	1.8mm	ø2.02	
C	DL-9000B-SH	40061767	2.3mm	ø2.04	

(3) Needle and feed timing



Standard Adjustment

Models	Other than DDL-9000B-SH	DDL-9000B-SH	
Vertical feed cam engraved marker line	0°	+20°	
Feed dial graduations	3	4	
Needle and feed timing	In a moment when the feed dog is positioned below the upper surface of the throat plate, the upper end (lower end of the throat plate for B-SH) of the needle hole shall be $0\pm1mm$ from the upper plane of the throat plate.		

Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 Adjustment Procedure 1. Adjust the feed dial graduations. DDL-9000B-SH: Feed dial graduation 4 Other than DDL-9000B-SH: Feed dial graduation 3 2. Let the sewing machine fall down and check the engraved marker line position of the vertical feed cam ①. DDL-9000B-SH: +20° (③) Other than DDL-9000B-SH: 0° (④) For adjustments, loosen two vertical feed cam setscrews ④ and adjust the cam to the engraved marker line ③. (Cautions) The angle of the engraved marker line graduation 1 denotes 10°. 3. Loosen two lower sprocket screws ⑤. 4. At the feed dog lowering timing (position where the upper end of the feed dog coincides with the upper plane of the throat plate), fix the vertical feed cam ① and slowly turn the flywheel in forward direction until the upper end of the needle hole coincides with the upper plane of the throat plate. In cases other than the DDL-9000B-SH, coincidence of the engraved marker dot ④ of the pulley cover with the engraved marker dot ④ of the pulley cover with the engraved marker dot ④ of the pulley cover with the engraved marker dot ④ of the flywheel can be regarded as the standard for needle hole upper end lowering. When coincidence is confirmed, tighten two lower sprocket screws ⑥. (Tightening torque for reference: 4.5N•m) 5. Adjust the thread trimmer cam timing. Refer to 13 –(11) Thread trimmer unit -3) Thread trimmer cam 	 Results of Improper Adjustment When tightening the two vertical feed cam setscrews ②, this work should be done while a good centering is secured. Otherwise, there will be adverse torque or unusual sound generation, or abnormal wear may be caused.
 standard timing]. Adjust the hook timing. Refer to [3(2) Needle and hook timing]. (Cautions) When the above-mentioned adjustments are finished, operate the sewing machine and examine whether any unusual sound or torque is generated or the thread trimmer unit works normally. 	

(4) Feed locus and phase



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 [Feed locus change] By adjusting the phase of the vertical feed cam ①, it is possible to change the up/down timing for the feed locus and needle. Adjustments can be carried out with two setscrews ②. 1. Timing standard The vertical feed shaft engraved marker line ④ coincides with the vertical feed cam engraved marker line ④ at 0°. Refer to [3(3) Needle and feed timing]. 	 o When tightening the two setscrews ② of the vertical feed cam ①, this work should be done while a good centering is secured. Otherwise, there will be adverse torque or unusual sound generation, or abnormal wear may be caused.
 Timing fast If you adjust the vertical feed shaft engraved marker line (a) to the vertical feed cam engraved marker line (a) and the minus side, the vertical feed timing is hastened against horizontal feed. (Also hastened against the needle) (Cautions) Adjustments should be done within -20° (2 graduations). Timing slow If you adjust the vertical feed shaft engraved marker line (a) to the vertical feed cam engraved marker line (a) and the plus side, the vertical feed cam engraved marker line (a) and the plus side, the vertical feed cam engraved marker line (a) and the plus side, the vertical feed cam engraved marker line (a) and the plus side, the vertical feed timing is delayed against horizontal feed. (Also delayed against the needle) (Cautions) Adjustments should be done within +20° (2 graduations). (Cautions) 1. When timing of the vertical feed cam (a) is changed, the feed timing is also changed against the needle. When the timing is adjusted, re-adjustment is required in accordance with [(3) Needle and feed timing]. 2. The angle of the engraved marker line graduation 1 denotes 10°. 	 Since the motion in horizontal direction is reduced at the beginning of feeding, the material cloth is fed assuredly by the effect of creep reduction. Feeding force is reduced around the end of feeding because the feed dog lowers faster. The motion becomes moderate at the beginning of feeding, thus making the material cloth biting worse. Light materials tend to be less damaged. The motion of feeding. Thanks to the leading effect, puckering tends to be improved.

(5) Bobbin insertion



	Adjustment F	Results of Impro	oper Adjustment		
 Hold the bobbin s case. (See Draw Pass the thread When the thread toward the thread spring. 	so that it turns to t ing.) through the threa d is pulled in the ding port B pas	n o If the direction o ing is adopted, e. ened possibly ca d in the amount o n	of clockwise wind- variation is less- aused by a change f bobbin thread.		
3. Examine if the bobbin thread is	obbin turns in the pulled.	e direction of th	e arrow when th	e	
About the standard	part numbers (DI	DL-9000B-∐ ∐)			1
Part name	MS, SS	DS	SH	MA	
Bobbin case	BAAA	22896252	40000264	40000264	
Bobbin case with idling prevention spring	D1837555 BOBA		11038700		
Bobbin	4009 (Made of a	1141 aluminum)	B9117012000 (Made of iron)	40091141 (Made of aluminum)	
 The DDL-9000B Series employs the bobbin case with an idling prevention spring. Adjustments of idling prevention spring tension can be carried out in the procedures below. If bobbin idling occurs, increase the idling prevention spring tension When the bobbin runs idle Increase the tension of the idle-prevention spring. When the thread is not well tightened Decrease the tension of the idle-prevention spring. * Adjustment of idling prevention spring tension (1) Insert an old needle as illustrated and remove the spring by lifting it up. (Suggestion: Use the thumb to prevent the spring from popping out.) (2) The spring tension can be changed by changing the height of the arch-shaped section of the spring. (3) Firstly, set the ear ① and insert the needle. Then, settle the ear ② is the state that the center part of the spring is lifted. (4) When a bobbin case with an idling prevention spring is used, it should be inserted in the winding direction as illustrated. 					
When sewing seems to be too tight at low speed: Adjust the bobbin thread tension and the idling prevention spring tension to be strengthened.					
When sewing seems to be too weak at low speed: Adjust the bobbin thread tension and the idling prevention spring tension to be weakened.					ng prevention
 * If there is a problem of bobbin idling or uneven sewing at high or low speed, use of a bobbin case with an idling prevention spring is effective. 					

(6) Adjustment of inner hook presser position



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
	 The front and rear positions of the inner hook presser ① can be adjusted by means of the setscrew ②. [Standard adjusting value] Fasten the needle entry section by means of the setscrew ② so that it is located closer to the shoulder section toward the front side from the center of the embossed part in the inner hook presser ①. 	 o If the embossed part of the inner hook presser ① has any flaw, this can be a cause of thread breakage or uneven sewing. In such a case, the damaged part shall be replaced with a new one. o If the inner hook presser ① is positioned inadequately, an extra tension is exerted when the thread comes out of the embossed part. This can be a cause of shrinkage errors.
4		



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
1.	 DDL-9000B-S (Specification for minute-quantity lubrication) Face plate needle bar lubrication : Minute-quantity lubrication by the oil wick Hook : Forced lubrication by the plunger pump Quantity of oil can be adjusted by the hook oil adjusting screw Lubricant can be fed to the oil tank through the arm lubrication hole 	
2.	 DDL-9000B-M (Specification for semi-dry items) Face plate needle bar lubrication : Lubrication by grease sealed in the needle bar lower metal 3 Hook 2 : Forced lubrication by the plunger pump 3 Quantity of oil can be adjusted by the hook oil adjusting screw 4. 	
	arm lubrication hole ③.	
3.	DDL-9000B-DS (Specification for dry items) Face plate needle bar lubrication : Lubrication by grease sealed in the needle bar lower metal Hook (RP hook)	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 2) Method of lubrication to the oil tank (DDL-9000B-S □ and DDL-9000B-M □ only) 1. Remove the lubrication hole cap ① and replenish the JUKI New Defrex Oil No. 1 (Part No.: MDFRX160000) or the JUKI Machine Oil 7 (Part No.: MML007600CA) with the use of an accessory oilcan. 2. Feed the oil until the tip of the oil level indicator bar ③ stays between the upper and lower engraved marker lines A and B of the oil gauge window ②. Be careful at that time that no dust and others enter the interior. 3. Lubrication is needed if the tip of the oil level indicator bar ③ comes below the lower engraved marker line B of the oil gauge window ② while the sewing machine is used. (Cautions) 1. When using a new sewing machine or the one that has not be used for a long time, trial running is required at the speed of 2000sti/min or below. 2. The hook oil shall be the one recommended by Juki. 3. Clean oil shall be replenished at all times. 4. Never operate the sewing machine while the lubrication hole cap ① is removed. Carefully manage 	 o If too much oil is replenished, there will be oil leakage from the air relief hole of the oil tank (). In addition, there can be possibility of failure in adequate lubrication. o Violent lubrication can result in overflow from the lubrication hole.
this cap not to loose it. (For reference) Even after making the sewing machine fall down, it is possible to check the quantity of oil in the oil tank. The quantity of oil is adequate if the oil level stays between the MAX and MIN lines.	
 3) Method of oil drainage from the oil tank (DDL-9000B-S and DDL-9000B-M only) When carrying the sewing machine or during maintenance servicing, it is possible to remove the lubricant from the oil tank. 1. Let the sewing machine fall down. 2. Insert the oil pan in the undercover. 3. Turn the oil drain screw of of the oil tank of to drain oil. 4. A maximum of 200ml of oil (to the MAX line) is contained in the oil tank of. (Cautions) 1. Be careful not to forget to tighten the oil drain screw of. Otherwise, this can be a cause of oil leakage. 2. Do not tighten the oil drain screw of too much. Otherwise, this can be a cause of oil leakage as a result of breakage. 	 Lubricant shall be removed, without fail, when transporting the sewing machine. Due to vibration during transportation, oil leakage may be caused through the air relief hole located on top of the oil tank ⁽³⁾.



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 (DDL-9000B-S and DDL-9000B-M only) Clean the oil filter periodically (approximately once every three months). 1. Let the sewing machine fall down. 2. Remove the lubrication pipe stop ring 2. 3. Remove the lubrication pipe form the float case 4. 4. Remove thread chips and material dust accumulated in the oil filter Refer to [4. Maintenance – (4) Lubrication mechanism configuration 	 o If there is clogging in the oil filter ①, smooth lubrication cannot be maintained from the lubrication hole.
and adjustments (DDL-9000B-SS, SH, MA, MS)].	



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
-	 5) Oil in the gear box 1. The condition is normal (within the range between the upper and lower lines for the oil quantity) if the oil level in the gear box can be seen through the oil peep window when the sewing machine is made to fall down. (Same as for the AK unit installed) (Cautions) 1. The gear box oil and the internal mechanism are maintenance-free. The oil type is different from that of the hook oil. 	 o Too less quantity of oil can result in mechanical wear or heat gen- eration. o Too much quantity of oil can raise inner pressure in the gear box. As a result, there will be oil leakage from the air relief hole or the oil seal of each shaft.
	Except for unavoidable problems, never open the	
	gear box cover ⑤ .	
	2. The quantity of oil is normal if the oil level can be seen through the oil peep window ①.	o According to the position of the head support bar on the sewing table, the oil level may change.
2	 6) Placement/displacement of the gear box cover Never open the gear box unless any problem occurs. In the case of placement/displacement for unavoidable reasons, pay attention to the cautions specified below. 	Use, without fail, the table exclusively specified by JUKI.
-	[Displacement procedures]	
	1. Let the sewing machine fall down.	
	2. Insert the oil pan in the undercover.	
	 Remove the oil drain screw ② to drain oil. Remove the setscrew ③ of the thread tension releasing wire holder and remove the thread tension releasing wire. 	
	5. Loosen the thread trimmer SOL cable setscrew ④ and remove the thread trimmer SOL cable.	
	 Loosen nine setscrews (6) of the gear box cover and remove the gear box cover (5) and the gasket. 	
	[Placement procedures]	
	1. Provide for a new gasket.	
	Gear box cover gasket Part No.: 4003/166	
	2. The gear box cover S and the bed mounting face shall be kept	
	Tighten nine setscrews (a) of the gear box cover (2-turn tightening)	o. Oil leakage may occur unless the
	4 Remove the lubrication stop plug (a) from the bed side and replenish	coupling face is kept clean
	140cc of the IUIKI New Defrex Oil No. 2	couping face is kept clean.
	(JUKI New Defrex Oil No. 2 Part No.: MDFRX2700C0)	
	* After replenishment, confirm the oil level through the oil peep window ①.	
	* Apply a sealant when mounting the lubrication stop plug (3) again.	
	 Cautions for gear box cover oil during transportation When the sewing machine is transported, there may be oil leakage from the air relief hole of the bed side due to vibration. During transportation, mount the air relief cap ③, without fail. 	o Change in the oil quantity can be
	(cautions) Never operate the sewing machine while the all relief	
	Air relief cap ③ : 23601305	o Inner pressure is raised and oil leakage occurs.
- 1		l I



	Adjustment Proc	cedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
	8) Adjustment of hook oil quantity When the hook oil quantity adjusting to the right), the amount of hook oil is (turned to the left), the amount of hook	screw ① is tightened (turned increased. When it is loosened ok oil is decreased.	
	 Hook oil adjustment procedures Tighten the hook oil quantity adjustimaximum oil rate and operate the matrix Loosen the oil adjusting screw by two tue In this case, give 30 seconds of idline measure the quantity of oil at the intervence seconds in total) 	sting screw ① to obtain the achine for about 30 seconds. rns and check the quantity of oil. ng to the sewing machine and ervals of 5 seconds (about 35	o By feeding very much oil, let the oil prevalent around the hook and through the lubrication route as a whole so that the oil path can be stabilized.
	 According to the quantity of oil secur amount of turning for the hook oil qua 30 seconds of idling to the sewing ma measure the quantity of oil at the inter 4. Adjust the screw position in the proce 	red at that time, determine the antity adjusting screw ①. Give achine after re-adjustment and ervals of 5 seconds. edures of 2. to 3. above until an	
	(Cautions) When the hook is replace	ained. ed or in the case of the head	
	(including the heads in a n	ew state) not used for a long	
	time, it takes about 10 to 20	0 seconds (4,000sti/min) until	
	the oil begins to appear fr	om the hook.	
	ne machine stays in the	e state of causing seizure.	
	Therefore, use the machine after running-in operation		
	at 2,000 pm of below.		
	10) Essentials for hook oil adjustment	ts	<when hook="" is="" of="" oil="" quantity="" td="" the="" too<=""></when>
1. When the quantity of hook oil is adjusted from excessive oiling		much>	
condition to reducing condition (loosening the screw), it is possible		o Too much oil can stain the	
h	to carry out stable adjustments.		materials to be sewn.
	2. Check the oil quantity about three tim	nes to confirm the stability.	o Oil consumption in the oil tank is
Г	3. If the quantity of oil is too much bet	ore adjustments, operate the	increased.
	to the book and remaining in the oil p	ath can be flung off completely	<when hook="" is="" of="" oil="" quantity="" td="" the="" too<=""></when>
		au can be hang on completely.	less>
	11) Replacement of the hook shaft oil wick		o The lubrication route tends to be
	The hook shaft filter ④ is a consumation	able item.	dust It is therefore necessary to
	Periodic replacement is recommended for the stabilization of hook		check the condition of oil quantity
oil quantity. 1. Remove the hook. 2. Remove the hook shaft filter screw ❸. (Cautions) Make sure not to hurt the tip hole of the hook shaft filter screw ❸.		periodically.	
		o Under rigorous conditions (operation	
		at high speed or continuous	
		operation), pay attention to the	
		Dert Ne	possible occurrence of problems such
		Part NO.	as hook seizure and thread breakage
	HOOK SHART HITER ASM.	22016506	by heat.
		11015006	o II a contaminated oil is used, filter
		11010300	can be a cause of unstable oil

3. Enter a new hook shaft filter ④ to the inner part of the hook shaft filter screw ⑤ and then get it around the hook shaft.

quantity.



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 * Figures on the graduations are indicated in the unit of mm. 1) Adjustment of forward feed stitch length 1. Turn the feed adjust dial 1 in the direction of the arrow so that the required figure is adjusted to the engraved marker dot (3) of the 	
 arm. When changing a feed graduation from high to low, turn the feed adjust dial while pressing the feed lever in the direction of the arrow. 	
 When the stopper ③ is turned in the direction of the arrow ⑤, the feed adjusting dial ① is fixed. 	
 If the feed adjusting dial 1 is not fixed, the stopper 3 is turned in the direction of the arrow G. 	
 2) Reverse feed stitch length check (manual) 1. Turn the feed adjust dial in the direction of the arrow so that the required figure is adjusted to the engraved marker dot of the arm 	
 Reverse feed takes place when the feed lever ② is pressed. The status that the lever is pressed at the maximum corresponds to the graduation value of the feed adjust dial ①. 	
 Reverse feed stitch length check (motor-power) When the switch (is pressed, the sewing machine assumes the condition of reverse feed. When this switch is released, the condition of forward feed is promptly recovered. 	
 [Adjustment of switch position] 1. Loosen the setscrew (and move the switch (main body vertically to adjust the height. 	
 If the switch ④ is turned, it can be used in two positions. If the switch ④ is required to be moved to a lower position, loosen the setscrew ⑥ located behind the sewing machine and lower the switch base ⑦. 	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 4) Optional switch When an optional switch ● is used, the functions specified below become available by a one-touch action. (SC-920) (Cautions) Select one of the functions specified below by taking a one-touch action. Optional switch part No.: 23632656 1. Needle up/down compensating stitching Needle up/down stitching operation is possible by pressing the switch 	
 Back compensating stitching Each time the switch ① is pressed, back compensating stitching can be performed at low speed. (Effective only if the constant-dimension stitching pattern is selected on the CP panel) Function of canceling reverse stitching at end once When the switch ① is pressed, reverse stitching at end is canceled once for the next sequence. Thread trimming When the switch ① is pressed, thread trimming can be carried out. Presser lifter function When the switch ① is pressed, automatic presser lifting is carried out. 1-stitch compensating stitching Each time the switch ① is pressed, 1-stitch compensating stitching can be carried out. (Cautions) When the optional switch ① is used, functional setup is needed at the control box. Each mean datails refer to the relevant instruction 	
manual for the control box.	



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment	
 5) 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 	 Adjustment of normal/reverse stitching Pinch a piece of paper beneath the presser hardware and set the feed dial graduation at 3. Remove the window plate (6 pcs.) of the sewing machine. * If it is difficult to work, or in the case of the AK-type machine head, work should be carried out after the pulley cover has been removed. Refer to [(14)-1) Adjustment of the pulley cover]. Loosen a feed adjusting pin setscrew ●. Using a 10mm hexagon head spanner, turn the feed adjusting pin ● for forward/reverse adjustments. By turning the flywheel by hand in forward direction, confirm that the normal and reverse pitches coincide with each other. When coincidence is confirmed, tighten the one feed adjust pin setscrews ●. 	 o The chamfered section ③ of the feed adjusting pin ④ should be adjusted on the bed side. o Under the condition that the feed adjust pin ④ is pressed, tighten the one feed adjust pin setscrews ①. Pay attention so that there is no presence of thrust rattling. o When normal/reverse stitching is adjusted, the Feed 0 position begins to be shifted slightly. 	
6) 1.	Adjustment of Feed 0 Method by removing the gear box cover (standard adjustment) * Set the chamfered section ③ of the feed adjusting pin ② on the		
 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) 	 bed side. (See the drawing at left.) Set the feed dial graduation at 0. Remove the gear box cover. Refer to [3 (7) Lubrication -6] Removal/mounting of the gear box cover]. Loosen three setscrews ⑤ of the auto-reverse feed solenoid ④ and remove this auto-reverse feed solenoid ④. Loosen the feed changing arm B setscrew ⑥. Adjust the feed adjusting link A ⑦ and the feed adjusting link B ⑧ so that they are aligned in a straight line. Tighten them with the feed changing arm B setscrew ⑥. Pinch a piece of paper beneath the presser hardware and turn the flywheel by hand in forward direction to see that the paper is not fed. Tighten three setscrews ⑥ of the automatic reverse feed solenoid ④. Refer to [3(8)-8) Installation of the reverse feed solenoid.] 	 Adjustment of the Feed 0 position results in slight displacement of normal/reverse stitching. 	


	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
1	 Apply appropriate grease to the groove section of the feed adjusting screw 1 and mount the O ring 2 in the groove section. 	
	Information about the appropriate grease (Optional item)	
	Part name Part No.	
	JUKI grease A 40006323	
2 3 4 5	 Adjust the feed dial and the feed adjusting screw , and temporarily join them with the feed dial screw . Set the feed dial stopper washer C on the arm side and attach the feed dial stopper and its washer A to the feed dial stopper pins and that have been driven into the frame. Then, pinch them with the feed dial stopper washer B. Position of the feed dial stopper washer A is determined by changing the joint between the recess of the feed dial stopper washer A and the feed dial stopper pin and the feed dial stopper in and the feed dial pin the feed dial stopper is and the feed dial pin and the feed dial pin and the feed dial pin the feed dial the feed dial pin the feed dial the feed dial the feed dial pin the feed dial the feed dial the feed dial the feed dial pin the feed bin the feed dial the feed d	 o If there is no clearance of A when the feed lever is pushed down, there is no effect of fixing the feed dial . o If the clearance of A is too much when the feed lever is pushed down, the feed lever will be returned unexpectedly while the sewing machine is operated.
	Feed dial of respective specifications	
	DDI -9000B-S MS DS 40036433 5	
	DDL-9000B-MA 40050584 4	
6	 In the state that the feed dial graduation 0 coincides with the engraved marker dot of the arm, join the feed dial screw ③ with the feed adjust screw ②. Cautions) After joining, confirm that the engraved marker dot of the arm coincides with the feed dial graduation 0. 	o If there is any displacement be- tween the arm's engraved marker dot and the feed dial graduation, there is no coincidence between the dial graduation value and the pitch.



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 8) Installation of the reverse feed solenoid 1. Installation of the reverse feed arm and the reverse feed solenoid 1. Attach the washer ① and the rubber seat ② to the reverse feed solenoid plunger in this order. 2. Install the reverse feed solenoid and temporarily fasten it with three each of setscrews ③ and washers ④. In this case, confirm that the direction of the reverse feed arm ① is as shown in the illustration. 3. Pull the reverse feed solenoid to your side and regularly fasten it in its utmost position by means of three setscrews ④. 4. Adjust the feed dial to Graduation 5 and move the reverse feed arm so that the gap length becomes 0.5 to 1.0mm between the rubber seat ④ and the reverse feed solenoid when the reverse feed lever is pulled to its limit position. In the position where the reverse feed link ⑤ is positioned in the center of the reverse feed plunger groove, tighten the reverse feed arm setscrew ⑦. 5. If the motion of the reverse feed plunger is not smooth, this may result from the tilting of the bed column B ④. Therefore, loosen the two setscrews ④ and adjust the bed column B to stand upright on the bed. After adjustment, fix the two setscrews ⑤. 	 o If the position of the reverse feed link ③ is not precise, this may be a cause of abrasion and breakage. o If the bed column B ④ is tilted, the reverse feed solenoid cannot be pulled fully and the reverse feed pitch may be decreased.
 9) Stop position of the feed control spring rack 1. Loosen two setscrews (1) of the feed control spring rack (3). Adjustments are hard to do if the spring is hooked. Therefore, remove this spring as required. 2. Tighten the setscrews (1) where a distance of 2.3mm is kept between the oblong hole end and the end part of the setscrew (1). 3. Attach the spring again. 	



Adjustment Procedure				Results of Improper Adjustment	
 Adjustment of the presser pressure Loosen the nut 2 and turn the presser adjusting screw 1. Turning in Direction 3 for strengthening Turning in Direction 5 for weakening Tighten the nut 2 after adjustments. 					
*	Standard value of t	he presser adju	sting screw heig	ght 🖸	
	Specifications Height mm Presser Presser pressure N pressure kg				
	DDL-9000B- S	33	40	4	
	DDL-9000B-SH	28	60	6	
	DDL-9000B-MA	22	20	2	
2) Adjustment of thread release changeover				o Adequate thread tension can be	
1.	1. When thread release changeover is adjusted, thread tension disc				maintained even when the knee
	floating can be cleared.				presser lifter is raised at the time
2.	2. With the aid of the knee presser lifter and the AK unit, the thread tension release function becomes effective when the presser hardware is raised by more than 3.5mm. This causes the thread tension disc to rise and no tension is exerted on the needle thread.				or heavy material processing and sewing around the corner sec- tions. Therefore, thread tension error can be avoided.

[Method of adjustment]

- 1. Remove the wiper unit. [OB Specifications excluded]
- Remove the cap ③ that is located behind the sewing machine. Using a hexagonal wrench of 3mm, loosen the changeover screw
 ④.
 - o Lowermost mounting: Thread tension release is possible with the knee presser lifter. (Standard)
 - o Uppermost mounting: Thread tension release is impossible with the knee presser lifter.
- (Cautions) Even when thread tension release changeover is ON, there is no problem because the thread tension release function is available at the time of thread trimming.



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
3) 1 2	 Adjustment of the micro-lifter According to the material to be sewn, the presser can be lifted in the middle of sewing. Lower the presser hardware to assume the condition where the feed dog is lower than the throat plate. In the state that the nut ② is loosened, slowly tighten the micro-lifter screw ① so that fine adjustment can be conducted in regard to the height of the presser hardware until proper status is secured for the material being sewn.	o When handling fluffy materials such as elastic materials or vel- vets, material shifting and damage can be relieved.
3	Fix the nut ❷. Standard height of the micro-lifter screw ● : 9mm	
4)	Adjustment of the micro-lifter unit (available separately) Standard DDL-9000B is equipped with a micro-lifter unit. If frequent adjustments are anticipated, however, it is recommended to use the micro-lifter unit that is available separately. Micro-lifter unit (available separately) : Part No. 40056622	 No tools are required. Fine adjustments can be carried out in a sitting posture.
[M 1 2 3	 Method of mounting] Remove the setscrew of the presser lifter lever ③ and take out the presser lifter lever ④ made of resin material. Remove the face plate and hold the presser lifter cam with the fingers in order not to let it move toward inside of the arm. Get the presser lifter lever ④ around the presser lifter cam shaft and fix it with the setscrew of the presser lifter lever ④. Temporarily fasten the two screws of the face plate and get the upper setscrew section around the accessory stopper collar ⑤. Confirming that the presser lifter lever ④ moves lightly, fix the stopper base ④ with the accessory setscrew ③. 	
1 2 3	 Loosen the stopper screw nut and turn the stopper . When it is turned toward you, the presser hardware rises. Make fine adjustments of the presser hardware height until it becomes suitable for the material being handled. Fix the stopper screw nut . 	

(10) Adjustment of needle stop position



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 Adjustment of upper stop position (Stop position after thread trimming) The standard needle stop position is located where the engraved marker dot A of the pulley cover coincides with the white marker dot B of the hand wheel. 	
 Turn off the power supply. Pressing the (i) switch (i) of the panel (CP 18), turn ON the Power switch. 	
 (Cautions) Screen display setup No. E is 121 and the setup contents F is for the angular indication. If the screen display is kept unchanged, repeat the operation of 1. and 2. again. Using the switch ① or the switch ②, set up the screen display setup No. F 	
 4. Set up the setup contents F within the range of -15 to 15, by means of the switch ③ or ④. (Standard setting is 0. The setup value denotes an approximate revolving angle.) When the value is set in + direction, the upper needle stop position is lowered. (Direction of C) When the value is set in - direction, the upper needle stop position is raised. (Direction of D) 5. When this setting is finished proces the switch ④ or ④ to fix the 	<when fast="" is="" it=""> o The remaining needle thread length becomes shorter after thread trimming. <when is="" it="" slow=""> o Interference between the needle</when></when>
 When this setting is minimed, press the switch T of the only the updated value. (Cautions) If the power supply is turned OFF prior to this work, the contents cannot be updated. 	o The remaining needle thread length becomes longer after thread trimming
 2) Adjustment of lower stop position The goal stop position is secured when reading on the front part of the pedal to obtain a neutral condition. 1. Similar to the adjustment of upper stop position (stop position after thread trimming). (Cautions) Screen display setup No. E is 122. 	o The remaining needle thread length becomes uneven after thread trimming.



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 Adjustment of the thread trimming cam position Let the sewing machine fall down, loosen two stopper plate setscrews and remove the stopper plate ^(B). 	
2. Assume the condition such that the thread trimming solenoid () is attracted by hand.	
 Loosen and adjust the thread trimming cam setscrew 4 so that the gap length becomes 2mm between the thread trimming cam 2 and the cam follower 6. 	
4. After adjustment, tighten two thread trimming cam setscrews ④.	
(Caution) After adjustment, make confirmation according to [3	
[Type I]	
5. Fix the stopper plate B with the two stopper plate setscrew A .	
5. Apply a slightly increased amount of appropriate grease (JUKI	
Grease A) to Part () of the stopper plate () and Part () of the	
stopper guide D.	
6. Insert the stopper spring () and the stopper guide () in this order in	
Part () of the stopper plate ().	
7. Fix the stopper plate \textcircled{B} with two stopper plate setscrews \textcircled{A} .	
2) Adjustment of the thread trimming link stepper screw	
1 Turn the band wheel and adjust the thread trimming roller G to the	
inlet section G of the thread trimming cam groove.	
2. Loosen the thread trimming link stopper setscrew B 7.	
3. Move the thread trimming link stopper setscrew A (6) and adjust the	
clearance to be uniform between the thread trimming roller (5) and	
the thread trimming cam groove on both inside and outside.	
4. Lighten the thread trimming link stopper setscrew B 🕼.	
A G does not move	
5. Try to move the cam follower 3 to the right and left and confirm that	
the thread trimming roller 6 enters smoothly without touching the	
thread trimming cam groove.	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
Arm's engraved marker dot S coincides with hand wheel's engraved marker dot S (green).	
 Method of confirmation Let the sewing machine fall down. Turn the hand wheel by hand in regular direction until the thread take-up lever reaches a bit toward the upper dead point. When the camis driven part notch is pushed by the finger to the left (in the direction of the arrow), the roller enters the thread trimming cam groove and is meshed there. In this state, turn the hand wheel in forward and reverse directions. Then, there will be a position where the hand wheel comes in contact. (If the hand wheel is turned more, that position is where the camis driven part begins to move.)	



Adjustment Procedure				Results of Improper Adjustment
 Extreme backward position When the moving knife moves at the maximum, its position is where its front tip is withdrawn by 2.5 to 3mm from the needle center. (Other than 9000B-SH) (3 to 3.5mm for 9000B-SH) 			<when amount="" is<br="" of="" the="" withdrawal="">large> o It becomes impossible to scoop the needle thread or the bobbin thread at the time of thread</when>	
	Specification	Max. amount of withdrawal		Comming. <when amount="" is<="" of="" p="" the="" withdrawal=""></when>
	Other than 9000B-SH	2.5 to 3mm		small>
2.	Initial position Coincidence of the moving engraved marker line on th	knife outer periphery with the Vale knife-mounting base	/-groove	o Interference between the feed dog and the moving knife



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 [9000B-SS, B-DS, B-M] The distance is 0.5mm between the knife thread guide ① and the blade tip of the counter knife ②. In this case, the distance is 4mm between the needle center and the blade tip of the counter knife ③. The blade tip of the counter knife ④ is located 0.6mm above the mounting face. [9000B-SH] The distance is 6mm between the needle center and the blade tip of the counter knife ④. (Cautions) 1. The blade sharpness is changed when the blade mounting angle is changed for the blade tip of the counter knife ④. (Cautions) 1. The blade sharpness is changed when the blade mounting angle is changed for the blade tip of the counter knife ④. The sharpness becomes best when the blade section of the counter knife ④. 2. When the counter knife ④ is adjusted or replaced, examine the blade sharpness, without fail. Also adjust the mounting angle of the counter knife ④. Loosen two the counter knife setscrews ④ and adjust the position of the counter knife ④. (Cautions) The window (hole section) of the knife thread guide ① shall be adjusted so that the needle enters the center of the hole section. 	 When the counter knife lis adjusted to the right: The bobbin and needle thread drawing length becomes longer than the standard by the distance of knife movement and the length of the needle thread remaining at the needle tip becomes longer. (There is a time lag in thread trimming.) When the counter knife lis adjusted to the left: The bobbin and needle thread drawing length becomes shorter than the standard by the distance of knife movement and the length of the needle thread needle thread trimming.)



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
1. Ho (1) (2) (3)	 w to check the amount of rise of the second thread tension disc Set the thread take-up lever slightly in front of the upper dead point. Raise the presser. The standard amount of the rise of the second thread tension disc ④ is 0.5 to 1mm when the picker ● is pushed toward the bobbin case side. 	 If the amount of rise of the second thread tension disc is too small, the needle thread length becomes short at the time of thread trimming and this can be a cause of thread entanglement and needle thread castoff errors at the beginning of sewing.
2. Ho <w Loo the <w Loo the (Cauti</w </w 	w to adjust the amount of rise of the second thread tension disc /hen increasing the amount of rise> osen the thread tension release wire fixing screw ② and move a thread tension release wire ③ to the right. /hen decreasing the amount of rise> osen the thread tension release wire fixing screw ② and move a thread tension release wire ④ to the left. ons) After adjustments, tighten the thread tension release wire fixing screw ② assuredly.	



Adju	Istment Proce	dure	Results of Improper Adjustment
The knife sharpness is most of the counter knife ①. In many cases, the sharpne counter knife ①. (Cautions) It is importar knife ① keeps knife ②.	t rigorously influ ess is improved nt that the blac s contact with th	enced by the blade tip shape I by blade sharpening of the de surface of the counter he blade area of the moving	
[Method of adjustment] Step 1: Sharpen Face A. (I Step 2 : Even when the ti sharpness must ha angle during sharp	Pay attention to p of Face B is ave got worse. N ening.	the angle.) s abraded and round, the Make sure not to change the	 If the sharpness is still not good even though the blade face has been sharpened sufficiently, this is because there is no simultaneous contact on the right and left of the blade faces between the moving knife 2 and the counter knife 1. In such a case, adjust the gradient of the counter knife 1.
(For reference) 1. To obtain knife 2 change illustrate 2. If the D If the C	in a good blade and the count the angle in th ed. side does not c side does not c	e touch between the moving er knife ①, it is effective to be direction of the arrow, as out well, decrease this angle. out well, increase this angle.	
About the counter knife			
Specifications	Part No.	Remarks	
DDL-9000B-SS, M 🗌 🛛	D2406555D0H		
DDL-9000B-DS	22895908	D2406555D0H with special surface treatment	
DDL-9000B-SH	40050589		



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 [Method of replacement] 1. Let the sewing machine fall down and remove the hinge screw A of the moving knife link. 2. Return the sewing machine to its original position and remove gauges of the needle, throat plate, feed dog, etc. 3. Remove the moving knife hinge screw and lift the knife yoke remove. 4. Remove the knife yoke hinge screw and lift the knife yoke remove the moving knife pin from the yoke groove of the knife yoke remove the moving knife pin has been removed, slide the moving knife to the left and take it out from the lower side of the knife yoke of. 6. Mounting steps follow the reverse order as above. When the moving knife hinge screw is loosened, try to move the moving knife by hand to see whether it moves smoothly without rattling. 7. Correctly set the yoke groove of the knife yoke in the moving knife pin and tighten the knife yoke hinge screw and lift, and confirm that the moving knife link stepped screw and left, and confirm that the moving knife moves assuredly. 	 In the case of reassembly, apply appropriate grease to the moving knife link stepped screw A ●. Appropriate grease part No.: 40006323



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 [Method of replacement] 1. Remove gauges of the needle, throat plate, feed dog, etc. 2. Loosen the knife thread guide setscrew small ① and the knife thread guide setscrew large A ②. (Cautions) Do not adjust the knife thread guide setscrew large B ③. 	 If there is no coincidence of the knife thread guide and the center the needle, this can be a cause of balloon stitches.
 [9000B-SS, B-DS, B-M □] 1. The clearance is 0.5mm between the knife thread guide ④ and the blade tip of the counter knife ⑤. In this case, the distance is 4mm between the needle center and the blade tip of the counter knife ⑤. (Rectangular mounting) 	
 The distance is 6mm between the needle center and the blade tip of the counter knife ⑤. (Rectangular mounting) 	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 Method of confirmation (Cautions) Confirmation should be carried out under the conditions that the hook and bobbin case plus bobbin @ are installed. (1) Let the sewing machine fall down and loosen two stopper plate setscrew @ to remove the stopper plate @. (2) Assume a condition that the thread trimmer solenoid • is attracted by hand. (3) In this state, the standard clearance is 0.5mm at the stepped part between the picker link @ and the picker arm • At that time, the clearance between the bobbin • and the picker • is 0 to 0.3mm. (Important) When standard adjustments are completed, an oblong clearance is secured in the picker link @ and indispensable return motions (damper function) can be performed. (4) The position where the picker • enters should stay almost in the center of Character U of the bobbin case. [Type I] (5) Fix the stopper plate • with the two stopper plate setscrew •. (Type II] (5) Apply a slightly increased amount of appropriate grease (JUKI Grease A) to Part • of the stopper plate • and Part • of the stopper guide •. (6) Insert the stopper spring • and the stopper guide • in this order in Part • of the stopper plate • . 	 When there is no clearance of the picker (a): o Since the bobbin (b) is pressed too much, the bobbin (c) cannot make a required turn at the time of thread trimming and the bobbin thread is cut short as a result. Therefore, needle thread castoff tends to occur at the beginning of sewing. When there is a large clearance of the picker (a): o The needle thread is disengaged from tip of the picker (a) at the time of thread trimming. Thus, the needle thread remaining at the needle thread remaining at the needle tip becomes short after thread trimming. o A bobbin (c) idling phenomenon occurs frequently and this can be a possible cause of problems at the beginning of sewing.
 Method of standard adjustments (Adjustment of clearance) Let the sewing machine fall down. Assume a condition that the thread trimmer solenoid is attracted by hand. Loosen the picker link pin nut (9mm) and move the picker link to the right and left for adjustment. After the completion of adjustments, fasten the parts assuredly. Method of standard adjustments (Adjustment of tip position) Let the sewing machine fall down. Assume a condition that the thread trimmer solenoid is attracted by hand. Loosen two picker setscrews to adjust positioning. After the completion of adjustments, fasten the parts assuredly. 	



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
The driven part sto prevented between roller comes off the t (such as a service in 1. In the state that two driven part st 0.3mm between driven part stopp 2. Adjust two drive	pper ② is a safety device so that interference is the needle and the moving knife even though the hread trimming cam when any unexpected problem interruption) occurs. the thread trimming device is not in action, adjust topper setscrews ③ so that the gap length becomes the notch ① of the camís driven part and the camís per ②. In part stopper setscrews ③ so that the gap length petween the notch ① of the camís driven part and the camís	
the camís driven	part stopper $@$ when the thread trimming solenoid he direction of the arrow.	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 12) Replacement of the knife unit [Method of replacement] 1. Let the sewing machine fall down. 2. Remove the needle, hook, and the inner hook presser. 3. Remove the moving knife link stepped screw B ①. * If removal is difficult to carry out, try to loosen the stepped screw ③ and move the picker link ③ before work. 4. Remove the knife unit fixing screw ④ and the picker arm hinge screw ⑤, and take out the knife unit ⑥. 	
 Installed length of the thread trimmer connector bar (asm.) Install two rod ends (s) so that they cross each other at right angles. Then, fix then with the nuts (s). In order to avoid loosening by mistake at the time of shipment, iwhite paintî is applied to the nuts (s). Loosen the nuts (s) when removing the thread trimmer connector bar (asm.) (40086708) without drawing out the lower shaft. When the nuts are loosened, the respective subsidiary parts are disassembled and the thread trimmer connector bar can be taken out. After disassembly, reassemble the parts so that the standard adjusting values can be secured. 	 o If the two rod ends ③ are not crossed at right angles, the obtained torque is the value for thread trimming. o If the center-to-center distance (99.5±0.4mm) deviates from the standard value, the initial position of the moving knife is changed and this can be a cause of thread trimming failure.



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 [Type I] 1. When the thread trimmer solenoid is pulled, the amount of protrusion is 0.7mm to 1.3mm between the tip () of the thread trimming shaft (and the end plane of the bed. (Caution) Confirm that a clearance is secured between the cam follower piece () and the end plane of the thread trimming cam () to 2mm. (Refer to 3(11)-1).) 2. The support rubber () of the stopper plate () should be made to contact so that it clogs the thread trimming shaft hole () of the bed. (Move the bed stud A to secure a light contact.) 	 o If the amount of protrusion is too small, the action sound of the thread trimmer becomes large. o If the amount of protrusion is too large, the amount of picker action becomes small and the lost motion of bobbin may occur. (If the amount of protrusion is too excessive, short cutting of the needle thread may arise. This is because the needle thread is disengaged from the picker.)
 (Type II) 1. When the thread trimmer solenoid is pulled, the amount of protrusion is 1.2mm to 1.8mm between the tip ② of the thread trimming shaft ① and the end plane of the bed. (Caution) Confirm that a clearance is secured between the cam follower piece ④ and the end plane of the thread trimming cam ③ to 2mm. (Refer to 3(11)-1).) * At the time of thread trimming stopper assembly, this work should be carried out in the center of the oblong hole in the bed stud A. 	 o If the amount of protrusion is too small, the action sound of the thread trimmer becomes large. o If the amount of protrusion is too large, the amount of picker action becomes small and the lost motion of bobbin may occur. (If the amount of protrusion is too excessive, short cutting of the needle thread may arise. This is because the needle thread is disengaged from the picker.)

Standard Adjustment Ø 000 0 = 2 mm 4 6 0 1mm Α В C D CP-18 W М Ν И i Ó Ø Ø Ó Ø

(12) Adjustment of the wiper (DDL-9000B- 🗌 🗆 -WB)

Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 [Method of replacement] 1. Turn the hand wheel 1 in the normal revolving direction and adjust the white marker dot 6 of the hand wheel 1 to arm's engraved marker dot 2. 	
 Using the wiper collar ④, tighten and fix the wiper adjust screw ③ in a fashion to press the wiper ⑤. At that time, a distance of 1mm should be secured between the flat section of the wiper ⑥ and the needle center. 	
 3. When no wiper ⑤ is needed: (1) Continuously press ① switch ⑥ for one second. (2) Actuate ④ switch ⑦ or ⊕ switch ⑥ to display ↓	

Standard Adjustment Α 0 Ο 0 00 0 \bigcirc O Ó \bigcirc 4 0 0 Q 0 \bigcirc \bigcirc ₽ D \bigcirc Ο B \square \bigcirc

(13) Adjustment of the thrust values for the upper shaft and the upper/lower feed shafts
Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 After everything has been installed for the upper shaft, remove rattles from bearings (pressurizing). Assemble all parts for the upper shaft. Loosen two setscrews ① of the upper sprocket. Enter the tip of a tapered minus screwdriver into the coupling ③ slot until it stops. (Part A) If the screwdriver tip is not inserted fully in the slot, the flange part of the upper sprocket is deformed or destroyed. Lightly turn the screwdriver to move the coupling ④ toward B in the direction of the arrow. The torque to turn the screwdriver is 7kgf•cm. (Light turning is sufficient.) If it is turned too strong, the flange part of the upper sprocket is deformed or destroyed. Tighten the setscrew ① of the upper sprocket. Turn the upper shaft by 90°C In regard to the second screw, follow the same procedures as (3) to (5) above. 	
 After everything has been installed for the upper and lower feed shafts, remove rattles from bearings (pressurizing). Work is required when the upper/lower feed shaft is pulled out, or when the setscrew of the upper/lower feed shaft front bearing holder is loosened, or when the C ring of the upper/lower feed shaft, right (pulley side), is removed. Install all the parts concerned with the upper and lower feed shafts. Loosen two setscrews of the upper and lower feed shaft front bearing holders. Temporarily remove the thread trimmer stopper if it disturbs the flow of work. Enter the tip of a tapered minus screwdriver into the slot of the upper/lower feed cam the direction of the arrow. The torque to turn the screwdriver is 5kgf*cm. (Light turning is sufficient.) Tighten the setscrew of the upper/lower feed shaft front bearing holder. Tighten the setscrew same procedures as (3) to (5) above. 	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment	
 Adjustment of the pulley cover [Method of replacement] Remove the hand wheel ①. Remove three pulley cover setscrews ②. (Cautions) 1. At the time of re-assembly, the pulley cover ③ should be kept raised. 2. At the time of re-assembly, handle the pulley cover ④ carefully not to pinch cables and others. 	 o This can be a cause of marker dot displacement from the hand wheel O. o This can be a cause of maloperation. 	
2) Clearance of the hand wheel		
 The clearance is 1mm between the hand wheel ① and the pulley cover ③. For adjustments, loosen the hand wheel setscrews ④ (2 pcs.) 	o If a clearance is too much, this can be a possible cause of entanglement of the thread from the thread stand.	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 In regard to adjustments of the bobbin winder amount and winder imbalance, refer to the relevant instruction manual. In this manual, descriptions are provided in regard to problems of winder shaft revolution errors. 1. Replacement of the bobbin friction wheel (1) Remove three bobbin winder unit setscrews 1. (2) Take out the bobbin winder unit 2. (3) Confirm if there is extreme wearing out in the rubber section of the bobbin winder friction wheel 3. If the amount of wearing out seems to be too much, replace the 	
worn-out section with a new one.	
Bobbin winder friction wheel ③	
 Adjustment of the bobbin winder driver wheel position Remove the window plate (including the AK unit) from the rear side of the arm. 	
 (2) Loosen the bobbin winder driver wheel setscrews (2 pcs.) of the bobbin winder driver wheel (4). (3) Mount the bobbin winder unit (2) on the arm. (4) Turn ON the bobbin winder lever (6) and let the head (1) coincide with the bobbin winder lever (6). At that time, the head (1) of the bobbin winder unit setscrew shall be 	
 At that time, the head for the bobbin winder drift setscrew shall be made to coincide with the bobbin winder lever (a). (5) Lightly make the bobbin winder driver wheel (a) lightly contact with the bobbin winder friction wheel (a) and tighten two bobbin winder lightly contact with the bobbin winder friction wheel (b) and tighten two bobbin winder 	
 (Cautions) 1. When the bobbin winder lever ③ is turned OFF, turn the hand wheel by hand and confirm that the bobbin winder shaft ⑦ does not turn. 2. Never apply grease or such an oily component to the rubber section of the bobbin winder friction wheel ④. Otherwise, this can be a cause of friction. 	o If the hand wheel is turned in the state of OFF, this can be a cause of abnormal abrasion.

4. Maintenance



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
For your long usage, the following routines (checks and maintenance)	
are recommended:	
(1) OII amount check	
9000B-DS)	
Confirm that the tip of the oil amount indicator ① remains between	
the upper and lower engraved marker lines of the oil gauge window. (2) Cleaning	
(1) Remove the needle 2, presser 3, and the throat plate 3.	
(2) Using a soft brush or a piece of cloth, remove dust that is clinging to the feed dog (6) or around the thread trimmer unit (5).	
(3) Let the head section fall down and wipe off contaminants from the	
bobbin case and others, using a piece of soft cloth. Also confirm that there are no flaws.	
In addition, wipe off dust and hook oil exhausted to the under-cover	
interior around the hook section, using a piece of cloth.	
(3) Application of appropriate grease	
In ordinary usage, it is unnecessary to replenish the appropriate	
grease 🜒 (JUKI Grease A). Under particularly rigorous operating	
conditions, however, periodic replenishment of the appropriate	
grease 🕡 is effective (approximately once every one to two years).	
Info about the appropriate grease	
Part name Part No	
JUKI Grease A 40006323	
1) Needle bar lower bushing (DDL-9000B-M , B-DS Specification)	
(Cautions) This work should be done in the state that the needle	
bar and others are installed.	
1. Remove the face plate.	
2. Remove the greasing screw 3 .	
3. Remove the cap of the appropriate grease (2) and enter the feeder	
tip in the lubricating hole. Then, replenish the appropriate grease	
✓. At that time, the grease should be fed until it flows out of the	
lubricating hole.	
4. Push in the overflowing appropriate grease 🕢 by means of the greasing screw.	
5. Wipe off the excessive appropriate grease (staying around the greasing screw).	
(Cautions) When a lubricant is newly replenished, operate the	
sewing machine for about 10 seconds of idling. A	
surplus amount of appropriate grease W may be discharged at that time. Wine it off then. Percept this	
uscharged at that time, wipe it on then. Repeat this	
regularly after the generation of the excessive	
$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} $	
$appropriate grease \mathbf{V} rias disappeared.$	



Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 Take out the horizontal feed bar shaft ① feed the appropriate grease to the grease groove. The horizontal feed bar shaft ① is processed to have a sacrifice M4 screw. Use an M4 screw and pull it out easily by means of small cutting pliers. Remove the vertical feed bar shaft ② and replenish the appropriate grease to the grease groove. Also feed the appropriate grease to the bearing ③ of the vertical feed cam interior conforming to the 9000B-DS Specification. At the time of reassembly after the disassembly of various parts, apply the appropriate grease to the sliding surfaces of the feed bar mechanism. Info about the appropriate grease <u>Part name Part No.</u> <u>JUKI Grease A 40006323</u> 	 For the specification of lubrication hook (9000B-S , 9000B-M) Lubrication is continued while hook oil is scattered around the vertical feed cam. When the reduced amount of hook oil is used, a small amount of application is acceptable. If too much oil is applied, dark contamination is caused by the hook oil and the material cloth may be stained.



	Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
1. 2.	Apply appropriate grease to the roller (arm's vertical sliding section) of the needle bar connecting section. Apply appropriate grease to the intermediate presser bar connection and arm's sliding groove section.	 o Grease is not required for the presser bar ②. If grease is applied, contamination like black ink is caused by the presser bar bushing ③ and the material cloth may be stained.
[DE 3. (Ca	 DL-9000B-SS, SH only] Confirm that the needle bar ③ keeps an exact contact with the oil wick ③ in the position 5mm below the needle bar upper bushing ④. If there is no contact, correct it by means of the oil wick support plate ⑦. Apply a piece of paper to the oil wick ③ and confirm whether it is wet with oil. 	 This can be a cause of seizure between the needle bar (and the needle bar upper bushing (4).



		Adjustm	Results of Improper Adjustment				
C 1 2	 Float case Float case Pull up the it out. Remove permissing The float Push it seen Float The float Insert it in as seen Be caref 	n of lubrication mech se ne float case ① stra and adjust the lub ble range where the t case guide ② has traight along the gr until there is a feelin t ④ has an orienta n the float case ① from worker side. ul not to bend the b					
		Part name	Part No				
		Float 4	40086648				
Γ.			10000010				
3	. Float cas	se guide					
Part name Part No. Float ● 40086648 3. Float case guide Put the float case guide ● in the guide groove section of the peep window ● and fix it to the bed. 4. Peep window Remove the window plate located behind the arm. It is fixed to the arm. 5. Oil filter The oil filter ● can be cleaned after removing the lubrication pipe fixing ring ● and pulling out the lubrication pipe ●.							

(5) Thread take-up lever mechanism



Adjustment Procedure					Results of Improper Adjustment	
(mportant) N (lo lubrication is no Maintenance-free				
W sł 1. 2. (0	/hen adjustin nall be obser eplacement Remove th Draw out t Cautions) E	g the thread take-up ved: of the thread take-u ne needle bar ① ar the needle bar uppe Be careful not to hur	o If this section is hurt, this will be			
	Needle bar	upper bushing 🕚		Rem	arks	cause of seizure.
	Part No.	23608003	Position: 0.	5mm h	ollow above the	
4. 5. 6. 7.	counterba Loosen tw (The threa Loosen th crank. Pull out th Remove th	lance () . To thread take-up lead take-up lead take-up lever sup the thrust collar sets thrust collar sets thread take-up lead take-up	ver crank sh oport shaft crew of toward you ever (couplin	aft set is pro the the , exce g) ①	screws ⑦. ocessed flat.) read take-up lever pt the thrust collar.	
	Thre	ad take-up lever	Part No.	Thread	d take-up lever stroke	
	Stan	dard specification	40037370		110mm	
	Specification	n for light-weight materia	als 40037439		110mm	
	Specification	n for heavy-weight materia	ls 40055604		108mm	
9. 1(11 (C	thread tak Reassemb At that tim observed. Insert the contact with set 1 in th and the ar Fix the ne Cautions) T	e-up lever crank sh oly can be carried ou ne, however, the ite thread take-up leve th the main shaft con ne order of the threa m. edle bar crank sets The first screw in th o coincide with the	aft. aft. it in the rever- ems specifie r unit to the pro- unterbalance d take-up lever- crew ③. are revolving a flat sectio	rse orced belo position (4). In rer cran direct n of th	ler for disassembly. bw shall be strictly in where it comes in stall the crank shaft ink, the thrust collar, tion shall be made he shaft.	
12	2. Remove the and fix it be	hrust rattles from th	e thread tak	e-up le	ever crank shaft 6	
1: 14	 (Make thru thread tak 3. Drive the r bar 1 and 4. Turn the ha the thread 	ust adjustments so t e-up lever crank ca needle bar upper bu d needle bar conne and wheel by hand s take-up lever crank s	that there are n slide smoo ushing 3 to ctor 2 . everal turns shaft 6 by m	e no th othly.) install in forw eans c uate n	rust rattles and the the parts of needle ard direction and fix if the thread take-up eedle bar centering.	

(6) Replacement of the motor



(7) Replacement of the timing belt



	Adjustmer	Results of In	nproper Adjustment		
 The followin 1. Removinexago 2. Removinexago 3. Removinexago 3. Removine arm 4. Removine arm 5. Loosen in the origination of the removing (Cautions) 6. Removine revolvine 8. Carefunere 	ng is the method of replace we the second setsor onal) we the first setscrew ③ (onal) we the pulley cover. o ((14) Adjustment of exter we the window plate (AK on. on two coupling setscrews order of the second screws order of the second	 o If no clearar be a cause struction. o After disass will be lost. 	nce is secured, this can e of motor bearing de- sembly, reproducibility		
	Part name	Part No.			
	Motor	40089196			
	Coupling asm 6	40051473			
9. In the p order fo	procedures below, reasse or disassembly.	embly can be carried	out in the reverse		

Adjustment Procedure	Results of Improper Adjustment
 The timing belt ● used is a product of the highest quality. Therefore, no maintenance is required. To make ready for responding to extra occasions, the method of replacement is explained below. 1. Refer to [4. Maintenance –(6) Replacement of the motor] and dismantle the motor. 	Part namePart No.Timing belt ①40086731o When removing the timing belt ①,
 (Cautions) It is unnecessary to dismantle the coupling. Let the sewing machine fall down and remove three setscrews (3) of the reverse feed solenoid (2). When the reverse feed solenoid (2) is dislodged, pull and take out the floater case (4). (Cautions) It is unnecessary to dismantle the lubrication pipes, 	be careful not to hurt it with a sharp tool like a screwdriver. Otherwise, this will be a cause of breakage.
 etc. 3. Turn the motor by shifting the timing belt by hand in the direction of the arrow. 4. Further reassembly work can be done in the reverse procedures for disassembly. 	



5. Screws for attachment and positions of external parts

6. Dry hook

	A	Results of Improper Adjustment		
(1) For the u In th wea Lubr If an (Cau	Cautions when the dry hook (RP h use of a specific man be case of continuo in on the race is acc ricant shall not be a hy abrasion is perce utions) The RP ho and cloth and defec cleaned p	a dry hook is used nook), lubrication is given to thaterial. us high-speed operation, it meter elerated. hipplied to the race. hived, change the old part with ook (dry hook) tends to colle dust, and this can be a case to the stitches. For this reas heriodically.	ne hook race with nust be noted that a new one. ect thread chips e of malfunction on, it should be	 o Hook rattling occurs and there are problems like heat generation and defective stitches. o Contamination like black ink is caused and this becomes a cause of thread to be stained.
		Dry hook (RP hook)		
	Part N	o. Remarks		
	228902	06 Standard type		
	228903	05 Surface treatment typ	be	
	228904	04 Type with a needle gu	ard	
	Bobbin c	ase part No. for dry hook : 228	396252	
If a c S to th * A ar 1. 2. I	dry hook is installed and B-M , the home ne dry specifications according to (7) Lub mount of oil is fed. Take out the lubrica Remove the hook s shaft tip.	according to the specification ok section can be treated as a c and sewing can be carried out v prication, set up the hook so ation hook. shaft filter asm 1 that is mout to the stop plug screw and Q ring v	hs of DDL-9000B- device conforming without lubrication. that a very small nted on the hook	
9. 1	separately.			
	11079506	Lower snatt stop plug screw		
4. / ((Cau	Adjust the amount of degree wet with a s utions) 1. Do not 2. Be care This oil metal.	of hook oil so that lubrication i small amount of hook oil. drain oil from the oil tank. eful not to allow the oil tank is used also to lubricate the	s maintained to a to be vacant. lower shaft front	o This is a cause of metal section seizure.



8. Air blow type hook cooling unit (available separately)

When a separately sold "air blow type hook cooling unit" is installed, it is possible to cool the hook that has been heated in overheating processes, etc.

(Cautions) Use an air source available in the factory.



	No.	Part name	Part No.	Quantity
	0	Hook cooling unit	400-23431	1
	0	Filter regulator asm	400-23432	(1)
	6	Finger valve	PV-0151220-00	(1)
	4	Filter regulator	PF-0551060-A0	(1)
	6	Regulator bracket	PF-9020050-00	(1)
	6	Plug	PJ-0251000-03	(1)
	0	Pipe bracket asm	400-23433	(1)
	8	Pipe bracket	400-23434	(1)
	9	Blowing pipe	400-23435	(1)
	0	Wire holder A	110-45408	(1)
	0	Urethane hose black	BT-0400251-EB	(1)
	12	Pan head screw 11/64-40 L=7	SS-4110715-SP	(1)
	ß	Mounting screws	SK-3412001-SE	(2)
*	4	Pan head screw 11/64-40 L=12	SS-4111215-SP	(2)
	0	Screw M4 L=6	SM6040600SP	(2)
	6	Flat washer 4.5X10X0.8	WP-0450801-SD	(2)
	Ð	Staples	MA-0115320-00	(2)
	ß	Cable clip bands	EA-9500B01-00	(2)

* Item () of the asterisk (*) is used in cases other than DDL-9000B.

9. Troubles and corrective measures

(1) Mechanical parts

- 90 -

Trouble	Case (1)	Case (2)	Check and Corrective measures
1. Skipping of one or more stitches occurs at the start of sewing.	1-1) The needle thread passing through the needle is too short after thread trimming.	1-A) Something is wrong with the needle threat route and the needle thread tension is too high at thread trimming.	Check needle thread routing, thread entangled on thread guide rod the direction, and position of thread stand or thread entangled on it.
		1-B) The tension of the 1st thread tension disk is too high.	Turn the thread tension nut of the 1st thread tension disk counterclockwise to decrease the tension.
		1-C) The floating amount of the 2nd thread tension disk is insufficient at thread trimming.	Check whether the floating amount of the 2nd thread tension disk reads between 0.5 and 1 mm when the hook thread presser is pushed into until the tip of the presser reaches the bobbin. The floating amount is adjustable by moving the tension release wire on the underside of the bed. Check whether the disk is horizontally loosened. If not, turn the thread tension spring 180 degrees or correct the spring inclination.
		1-D) The timing of the tread trimming cam is too early.	Inspect and adjust the standard timing of the thread trimming cam with reference to 3 (11) -3). Adjust the timing to red or colorless type.
		1-E) The needle thread is detached at thread trimming due to wrong position of the hook thread presser.	If there is a clearance at the tip of the hook thread presser when the plunger is pushed by a finger toput the thread trimming solenoid into the suction state and the hook thread presser is pushed into until the tip of the presser reaches the bobbin, conduct readjustment with reference to 3(11) -9).
		1-F) The counter knife is too close to the needle, or the knife tip is too sharp.	Check whether the position of the counter knife is correct and the moving knife has a flaw after removing the throat plate. [3(11) -4), -5), -7) and -8)]
		1-G) The knife thread guide, moving knife, or hook has a flaw.	Check whether the hole portion of the hook (especially the blade top) or knife thread guide has a flaw. If there is a flaw there, buff the flaw portion sufficiently. If the flaw portion is large, replace the part.
	7	1-H) The lifting amount of the auto- lifter device (AK-141) is too large.	Excessive rise of the auto-lifter device causes the thread guide with presser bar guide to rise rapidly and the needle thread to be pulled by the thread take-up spring resulting in shortened needle thread. Readjust the rise amount of the AK device to approx. 8.5 mm. Alternatively, set the remaining amount of the needle thread relatively longer for use of the AK device.

To the next page



Trouble	Case (1)	Case (2)	Check and Corrective measures
From the	previous page		
	1-5) The bobbin thread is too short at sewing start.	5-A) Bobbin idling pulls the edge of the bobbin thread into the bobbin case.	Increase the pressure of the bobbin presser.
			Increase the bobbin thread tension.
		5-B) The pressure of the bobbin presser is too high.	Reduce the pressure of the bobbin presser. However, be careful not to idle the bobbin.
		5-C) A flaw on the hook causes the bobbin thread to be cut too short.	Repair the flaw on the hook, or replace the hook.
	1-6) Knot tying between the needle and bobbin threads is not easy at sewing start.	6-A) The sewing speed at sewing start is too fast to knot the needle and bobbin threads together.	Conduct 1 or 2 stitches of soft-start at the sewing start.
2. The edge of the needle thread comes out on the material at the sewing start.	2-1) The needle thread passing through the needle is too long after thread	1-A) The 1st thread tension is too low.	Increase the 1st thread tension.
	umming.	1-B) The timing of the tread trimming is too late.	Inspect and adjust the standard timing of the thread trimming cam with reference to 3 (11) -3).
		1-C) The counter knife is set too back.	Adjust the counter knife with reference to 3 (11) -5).
3. The underside of the material is not neat at sewing start.(The needle thread remains long under the material.)	3-1) The needle thread passing through the needle is too long after thread trimming.	1-A) Refer to the previous item, [The needle thread passing through the needle is too long after thread trimming].	Refer to the previous item, [The needle thread passing through the needle is too long after thread trimming].
	3-2) Adjustment of the throat plate, needle, or foot is inappropriate, and the needle thread passing through the needle cannot be shortened after thread trimming.	2-A) Refer to the previous item, [An inappropriate needle, throat plate, or presser is used. Alternatively, the pressure of the presser is too low].	Refer to the previous item, [An inappropriate needle, throat plate, or presser is used. Alternatively, the pressure of the presser is too low].

- 92 -

Trouble	Case (1)	Case (2)	Check and Corrective measures
4. The needle thread slips off the needle at the sewing start.	4-1) The length of the needle thread passing through the needle varies after thread trimming.	1-A) Too high 1st thread tension due to delayed thread trimming timing causes the thread to be cut before engagement between the moving and counter knives. (midway cut)	Turn off the power, push the hook thread presser into the bobbin case by hand when the needle reaches the lowest point, trim the needle while turning the hand wheel, and stop the hand wheel when the thread take-up lever comes to the upper dead point. If the length of the needle thread passing through the needle at this moment is 10 mm or more shorter than that of the pedal operation, hasten the timing of thread trimming or decrease the 1st thread tension because this is a midway cut.
	4-2) The cause and measures are the same as those for the item, "1. Skipping of one or more stitches occurs at the start of sewing".	2-A) Shallow entry of the hook thread presser into the bobbin case occasionally causes the needle thread to be unfastened from the hook thread presser.	Adjust the hook thread presser with reference to 3(11)-10).
		2-B) Sharpening the counter knife is inappropriate. (too sharpened)	Resharpen or replace the counter knife with reference to 311)-7).
		2-C) The knife thread guide, moving knife, or hook has a flaw	Buff the flaw portion or replace the damaged component.
		2-D) The needle is too thick.	Replace the needle with a thinner one.
	4-3) The needle thread slips off the needle immediately after thread trimming.	3-A) Too early cam timing or too late hook timing causes the moving knife to cut the needle thread to hold 3 threads before thread separation.	Slipping of the needle thread from the needle immediately after thread trimming results from cutting the needle thread passing though the needle due to defective thread spread- ing by the moving knife. In such a case, Thread chips of 40mm level exist under the throat plate or on the under cover. In this case, delay the timing of the thread trimming cam.
	4-4) Knot tying between the needle and bobbin threads is not easy at sewing start.	4-A) The sewing speed at sewing start is too fast to knot the needle and bobbin threads together.	Conduct 1 or 2 stitches of soft-start at the sewing start.
	4-5) Improper clearance of picker	5-A) The picker is too strongly functioning and it disturbs idling that is needed for the bobbin.	Adjust the picker alignment to a weaker level.
5. The thread tension is inappropriate at sewing start.	5-1) The tension of the needle thread is too low at sewing start.	1-A) The hook thread presser is inappropriately mounted.	Adjust the hook thread presser with reference to 3(11) -10).
		T-B) Bobbin idling causes the bobbin thread tension at sewing start to decrease.	Adjust the hook thread presser with reference to 3(11) -10).
			Adjust the tension of the idling prevention spring of the bobbin case.
		1-C) The tensions of the bobbin thread and needle thread are too low.	Increase the tensions of the bobbin thread and needle thread.
		1-D) The presser or throat plate is inappropriate.	Refer to the previous item, [An inappropriate needle, throat plate, or presser is used. Alternatively, he pressure of the presser is too low].





(2) Sewing conditions



To the next page



To the next page



To the next page

- 98 -



To the next page



To the next page





To the next page






To the next page

Trouble	Case (1)	Case (2)	Check and Corrective measures
From the previous page			
	11-6) The material is inappropriately stretched.	6-A) The needle hole of the throat plate is too large.	Replace the current gauge with a new one having a smaller diameter hole.
		6-B) The thread relief on the back side of the presser is too large.	Use a presser with a smaller thread relief on the backside or without thread relief.
		6-C) The parallel level of the presser is inappropriate.	Replace the presser, or loosen the presser bar holding screw and correct the needle entry and presser bend if there is no needle entry.
		6-D) The presser is floating.	Adjust the clearance between the presser bar holder and lifting plate.
	11-7) Backlash exists in the moving direction.	7-A) Irregular stitches occur due to pitch fluctuations resulting from variation in the sewing speed.	Check whether there is a backlash and eliminate the back lash if necessary.
	11-8) The stroke of the thread take-up lever is too long.		Move the arm thread guide rightward to reduce the thread feeding with the thread take-up lever.
	11-9) No reaction is observed from the thread guide bar.		Use D1113126WA0.

- 106 -



MEMO





JUKI CORPORATION HEAD OFFICE

 JUKI CORPORATION HEAD OFFICE

 Juki Corporation operates an environmental management system to promote and conduct the following as the company engages in the research, development, design, sales, distribution, and maintenance of industrial sewing machines, household sewing machines, industrial robots, etc., and in the provision of sales and maintenance services for data entry systems:

 ① The development of products and engineering processes that are safe to the environment

 ② Green procurement and green purchasing

 ③ Energy conservation (reduction in carbon-dioxide emissions)

 ③ Reduction and recycling of waste

 ⑥ Improvement of logistics efficiency (modal shift and improvement of packaging, packing, etc.)



JUKI CORPORATION

INDUSTRIAL SEWING MACHINE DIVISION 2-11-1, TSURUMAKI, TAMA-SHI, TOKYO 206-8551, JAPAN PHONE: (81)42-357-2371 FAX : (81)42-357-2274 http://www.juki.com

Copyright © 2010 JUKI CORPORATION. All rights reserved throughout the world.

Please do not hesitate to contact our distributors or agents in your area for further information when necessary.

* The description covered in this engineer's manual is subject to change for improvement of the

commodity without notice.

This manual uses environment-friendly soyink.

